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SUATOUNT o THE ISsUES PRESENTLD O PETITION FOR REHEARING

Pursuant to Rule 35, Utah PRules of Appellate
Procedure, Respondent Gulf Nil Corporation (hereafter "Gulf'")
respectfully petitions the court for a rehearing and states with
varticularity the follovwing facts and lav vhich the court has
sverloolzed or misaonlied:

POTHT I: THE COURT HAS OVEDLOOWED AND MISAPPLIED THE BASIC
FACTS AND TESTIMONY AVAILABLE TO SUBSTANTIATE
T!E ORDERS IN CAUSE NOS. 139-20 AND 139-20(B),
AND HAS THEREFORE FAILED TO PERCEIVE THE BOAPD'S
PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT FOR THE ALTAMONT FIELD
(U.C.A. SECTION 40-6-6(d)); FURTHER, IT HAS
SUBSTITUTED ITS 01 VERSION OF FACTS FOR THOSE
F Tdf 80ARD, IN VIOLATION OF THE COURT'S OU
ESTARLISHLED STANDARD OF REVIEV.

POINT II: RELIEVING ™MR. BCNMIOMN OF RESPONSIBILITY FOR
COSTS FOR A MNECESSARY INFILL DEVELOPMENT WELL
GRANTS HIM A WINDFALL AND AN UNJUST EMRICHMENT,
I CONTRACICTION TO THE INTENT BEHIND U.C.A.
$40-6-6(g) and (h).

POINMT [IL: MP. BENMION'S CORRCLATIVC RIGHTS HAVE NOT BEEN
TRAMPLED UPON; PATHER, THEY HAVE BEEN SCRUPULOUSLY
PROTECTED BY THE PLAY OF DEVELOPMENT INSTITUTED
BY THE BOARD UNMDER THE MANDATE OF U.C.A.$40-6-6(d).

STATEMENT OF THE CASE

On October 22, 1981, the Utah Board of 0il, Gas and Mining

-
(hereafrer the "Doard") entered its Order in Cause No. 139-20(B),

uhich Order desiznated the Albert Smith Ho. 2-8C5 well (hereafrer

NI

the Albert Srith MNo. 2 wvell) the production well for the drilling/
sracine unit comprised of Section 8, Township 3 South, Range 5 West,

..., Duchesoe County, UYtah. The Albert Smith to. 2 well vas an

o

evoerivental infill well, approved in Cause No. 139-20, and was the



o

second well drilled in the unit. The Order further required that
the Albert Smith No. 1-3C5 (Albert Smith No. 1) well, the first well
drilled in the section be shut in until further notice.l tr. Sap
. Dennion (appellant herein), ovwner of a 0.53” nmineral interest in
Section 3, appealed the Order in Cause 7To. 139-20(P), This Court
vacated the Order of the Board (Cause Mo. 139-20(B3)), instructed the

Board to enter an order to the effect that the Albert Smith No. 2

well is and has been producing in violation of Utah law, and

relieved Bennion of all obligation to share in the cost of drillingo

the second well. (Slip op. at 4). The reasons given by the court

for its opinion are: 1) lack of statutory authorityv to allov a

1

"test" well to displace a "production' well; and 2) insufficient

evidence to support the Roard's decision. (Slip op. at 2-4).
ARGUMEMNT

POINT I: THE COURT HAS OVERLOOKED AMD MISAPPLIED THE PASIC
— FACTS AND TESTINONY AVAILARLE TO SUBSTANTIATE
THE ORDERS IM CAUSE NOS. 139-20 AND 139-20(R),
AND HAS THERLCFORE FAILED TO PTRCEIVE THE BOARD'S
PLAM OF DEVELOPMENT FOR THE ALTAMONT FICLD
(U.C.A, SECTION 40-6-6(d)); FURTHER, IT HAS
SUBSTITUTED ITS OUN VERSION OF FACTS FOR TUnSr
T THE BOARD, IM VIOLATION OF THE COURT'S oY
FSTASLISHEN STANNARD OF PLVIG!,

The Albert sSmith No. 2 was cone of approximately eighty

other infill wells anproved for the Altamont TField. The

lBy statute, onlv one production well was allowed per unit,
U.C.A. §40-6-6(c), (1953 as amended)



authorization procedure, (from initial approval pursuant to long
standing nractice, to final well designation after a production test
periovd) is set furth in Cause MNos. 139-20 and 139-20(B) (attached).
Poth Ocders rmust be read in conjunction to understand the nature of
the nlen.

fulf resoectfully submits that the court has overloolked
the RBoard's determination of basic facts in Cause No. 139-20 which
are relevant to the Albert 3mith lo. 2 well and has therefore
failed to perceive the Board's plan of additional well authorization
for the Altamont Fiel@.

A, BASIC FI'IDINGS OF THEL RBOARD RELEVAMT TO THE ALTAMONT
CICLD GEYERALLY

In Cause No. 139-20 the Board made the following findings
concerning the Altamont Field as a whole (Order, pages 3 -4):

1) "State and Federal rezulatory authorities, as well as

. . individuals . . . have been aware of the fact that application

of [Dresently tnown)] drilling techniaues under the current spacing
pattern will result in cnly a 9% recovery of the oil in place. . . .

2y "[Clonsistent with the mandate . . . to promote
sreater ultirate recovery of [o0il] as long as there exists a
possibilitv for recoverv of a greater portion of the 90% of the oil
10 place . . . 1t is the policv of the Board that every effort
should be made to maxinize recovery . . . .
3) "To promote the greatest possible recovery of oil and

¢as . . . the Doard and Division have permitted numerous



experirents, [including] the Adrilling of test vells within [al 4
acre unit to determine whether the Roard's 649 acre snacin: o7 this
field was draining the area in the most effective manner."

To fully understand the nmeanin- o7 these findinzs, ore
must exanine and understard tre history o7 the Altaront Tie!A,

R. ALTAMONT FIFLD

The initial exnloration of the Green Piver - Yasatch
formation underlying the Altamont Field occured in the 1960"'s., Ac a
result of the initial acctivitv, the Roard established 64 acre
drilling/spacing units in Cause Yo. 137-3, dated Senterber 27, 1272
(attached). The purpose of the spacing was to ensure that further
initial exploration occured in an orderly fashion, without wvaste or
unnecessarv wells.

In the ensuing years, various operators, including
respondent Gulf, proceeded to complete the initial exploration by
drilling one well each on specifically selected 649 acre spacing
unicts. The snatial partern of these wells circumscribed the 2encral
geographic boundaries of tne Field. The wvells themselves, in dne
course, revealcd inportant aspects of the peolony and production
characteristics of the Green River - Vasatch formation, o ceolosv
that proved to be singularly uniqne.

As was demonstraoted to this honorable Conrt (arn
argument), production from the Green River - Yasatch formations
-

underlving the spaced units cororisiny the AMloivont Picld is



coverned v overtical fracrturing. Absent this fracturing system the
formation vould lacl the requisite permeabilitv for production of
o1l end s 1o the Altarmont Tield. The unique geology of the field
e ore=Jdritlicr estirates of the drainacze of a particular well
nite tnceliable, ["e oneratcer tad no reccurse but to produce a
cell watil 1o aprroached 1ts economic limit, which limic thereby
establisned the toral amount of production from the well. Fron
these factual toral amounts, the operators could finally infer the
nrobable drainaze of the well. f(hen the results were in, the
vserators realized ranv of the wells were not draining all cthe
rescrves believed to underlie each spacing unit, because of the
neculliar zeolozy of the formaction and the limits imposed by the
fracturing svstem. If a well cannot drain all the reserves, it
follows that sone portions of the reservoir are not accessed by the
well, Naturally, 1f an existing well cannot produce these reserves,

such reserves are, bv definition, unrecoverable and wasted.

33 0F FACT AYD TESTINMONMY CONCERNING THE NEED FOR

N
DT oonrTH ), 2 - SC0s UILL

Therefore, as each initial well approached its economic
lio1e, and such limit defined its drainaze as less than 640 acres,
2 additional vell vas pronosed to recover the unreachable reserves.
715 was the case with Section $ and the Alberct Smicth No. 1 well.
¢ Cange o, 13-20 the 8oard found: "[I]t is postulated that due to

e Fact that the present \lhert Smich YNo. 1-9C5 well is not highly

Gotlve, .. .oa new 1nfleld well may drain the 640 acre tract



nore effectively and recover snfficient additional oil to be an
economic well." (Order, pape &)

The Board believe it should authorize additional wells,
i€ necessary for a particular dritlins unit (see findinecs noted on
mage 4, supra.), and had the avthoritv tu Ao s

A key issue for both Gulf and the Boerd to consider wacs
the disposition of the Mo. 1 well, which was still producing, thouzh

already at its economic limic.

D. THE ROARD'S PLAN OF DEVELOPMENT

The Board had, over the vears, devised a plan of
development which responded fairly and equitably to the concerns of
the operators and interest owners, and still recognized the urique
geology of the field. The plan, as applied to Section 8, allowed
Gulf to drill an sdditional experimental vell and to test the well
for a short period of time.3 The purnose of this nrocecure wvas to
determine if the test well had encountered additional reserves

producible through the fracturing svstem. The kev datum, which

7 -
“Authoritvy was vest21 pursuant to

(1252, as=
arended). See Order, Cause o. 139-2T

3The Noard found in Cause No. 139-20 that the Albert Smith “o.
2 well was not being drilled in violatiun of the Poard's Order in
Cause Mo. 139-%8 as said vell was oresenctlvy onlv an exnerimental well
and vas not to be produced without subsequent order of the Poard,
(Order, page 6).



s o the goal of the test, and vhich would resolve the issue, was the
initial producrion data from the new wvell.

There“ore, the first step in the Board's plan was, on a
untt by nnit basis, to deternine if an additional well was necessary
te recover additional reserves. If so, the scecond step of the plan
wis to determine wvhether it was more equitable to produce the
second well or the firsct, and if the second was to be produced, the
disposition of the first well.% The key factor in the second step
designation hearing is the proffer of the initial production data
from the test period. Gulf submits that cthe Board's plan was
manifestly within the mandate of the statute authorizing it "to
pernit the drilling of additional wells on a reasonably uniform plan
in the pool, or any zone thereof." U.C.A. §40-6-6(d). The plan had
heen in effect since the initial spacing order.

L. THE UEARIMG ON THE DESIGNATION OF WELL STATUS -
CAUSE No. 139-20(R)

Gulf followed the plan developed by the Board. The Albert

~ith Mo. 2 Uell was drilled and produced simultaneously with the

“In Cause Mo. 139-20, the "oard found that the Board could,
after proper notice and hearing, designate the Yo, 2 well as the
rroduction well for the unit and shut in the No. 1 well, if the
evidence so required, or the No. 2 well could be designated the
producing well "in a drillinz unit of decreased size from that
order=d in Cause Mo. 139-28." (Order, page 7). llote that the Board
retained the ontion of ordering either available method of second
vell authori-zation, downsnacing or infill., (U.C.A. S40-6-5(d)).




Albert Smith No. | well an Tarc.r .,

1281. CGulf presente? the r.-
the hearinz on Anril 3o, 17~
tlhert Zoith Yol 1 protace |

2

and 20,3473 barrels of water o

a

eraze of 13..4 barrels ol o
produced 24,677 barrels ¢f o1

2

of water durinc 77 davs of one

barrels of o1l per dav. nlf's

testified that the Albers o0
o1l and zero barrals of v
cholie, tubinz pressare !, 30
1921, (2.1%0.) e, (fr. Anc
the Albert i-ith Co. 1 el

producing from 1: to 2 barre

lifcinz and then Adisnosiog uf
Lo the delerminatior o400

In concluiin it
demonstrate THaL 10 Was 7ar:

first wvell and refesl nate ¢

this honorable Conr: SRE
Snlf o odrd o oman a0
Co™rerial i)Y e
wonld exces! tiat
beotihe ficsrooel

Lestiited:

)

L

L

o

b

W

1

bo- o7
t o ' B!
T T [l
rin B
Dorer oy
s
oo, o0

as shur 1

[ !

o .

“ L I
it
el

et .

NV

our o
ST
1tnes?,
o
o0 onT I
J.ohear
Le=t1" 1e
notan -
Aol !

thoan o
RS I

Iy

v

r r

1T
-0



a
1

ot

.»
o
ol
=
—

- 1= -
! bt the
! ] - -
- - U D20 One
! Tor tin: sands

L22 that thi: testimany of Sir.,
yttryiosted ty the Mbert Smicth Moo 2

al3 that Y'r. Anthoav vas

KT S P ChLLTT=20GY, He was
ctoocios b I ouslhe M. Aathony did not
1 e 2wl owenld ke a conrercial

cole v hat not ver heen through

n

S, 'r. o teclhonv's statément was not
T Jouell telvizse the nezeéssary

the Torrd was Sally coanizanct of the

Tt s RN face
AAAAA N LU te accorte? the zreatest
v T 2ot tent of
1. -
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extablishing drilling units shall direct that no
more than one well shall be drilled for neooaducrion
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w Poard complied 1n every detall wich this nmandate; not more than
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leased his interest to Gulf (cor anv other company or individioal that
was interested in exploring the section), nor did he azree teo hecore

" or joint venture participant in the prospect.

a consenting "partner
Ye simply did nothing. Tecause of this, Tnulf carried v, Zennian's
interest, i.e. Gulf advanced for 'fr. Reanion's acconnt that portion

P

of drilling and cownleting cests actrituteble to his ownership

6

percentage. Once the well was completed at Gulf's expense, ‘ir.
Bennion's rights to a portion of production from the well were
determined by Utah lawv.? Under the law, Mr. Bennion, as a nineral
interest owner, was entitled to a cost free royaltv of 12.5% of the

production attributable to his proportion of interc¢st. See Rennicorn

v. Utah Board of 0il, Gas and Mining, 675 P.2d 1135, 114l (Ucah,

1983). The other 87.5% of the production attributable to Mr.
Bennion's portion of ownership (commonly referred to as the working
interest) was credited to Gulf as reimbursement for the costs it
carried on his behalf. It is irportant to note that Gulf could leen
87.5% of Mr. Bennion's portion of production onlyv. If the well did
not produce, Gulf could not seelr reimbursement from Beanion.
Therefore, if the well was dry or plaved out before pavout {cthe

point at which, by definition, all costs ar= recovered), fyld

61n 8 Uillians and '‘evers, ‘lanual of Terms, carried interest 13

defined as: A fractienal 1nterest . . . the holder of which has no
personal obligation for opecratiay costs, vhich are to be pal’ Ia the
owner or ownecrs of the reralonlng fraction, vho reirbirse

themselves . . . out of prodnction, 1f anv.'"  (“rohasi:

velede )

7U.C.A. S40-6-672) and (ny (1093 as amen Ledn,
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could pot have recovered all carried costs. All of the risk and
cxoense was Sulf's - not Pennion's. After pavout, Mr. Rennion's
@ort1n interest was returned to him and merged yith his royalty
1ntecest. e subseruently ouwned 1007 of the producrion attributable
Lo Nls share 1n the Lo. 1 well, subject to his portion of the
cnoolns production costs.  Mote that at no time ia this procedure
vas “'r. bBennion required to pay Gulf any money out of his pocket.

e teo! no monetary cisls whatsover., His is the safest and best of
all possible worlds. Mever have his correlative rights been
trarpled upon.

3. CARRIED THTERTSTS UITH RESPECT TO THE ADNITIONAL
COIT VELL

Gulf proposed a second unit well to recover otherwise
unrecoverable reserves in the unit., The present dispute arose over
financingz of the second well. “Mr. Bennion asserts he is required to
ray for onlv one well per unit. (Brief of Appellant, page 11).
nlf submits that 1f the second well is necessary to recover
viiiticonal reserves, thea it is fair and equitable to require all
narties to pav their fair share of costs. The kev issue is the need
Tor the well.

Snlf, as ooverator, was willinz to take the risk that the
cocond well would recover new, additional oil. Mr. Bennion was not.

nrotect his rizhets as A non-consenting owner, the Roard

ctecrfrcally ordere? that he was not to be charged with any costs of



the second well until such time as it was designated the producin.
well, after notice and hearina.?

Mr. Eennion argues that it 1s unfarr cto Jenrive hirm of his
100% share in the first well, which is no lonuer in production,
and give hir only a 12.5% share in the second, uhbich is canable of
commerical production. Mr. Bennion owns a .53% interest in Section
8., The evidence adduced (production records attached) shous that
the Albert Smith No. 1 flell produced 1,600 barrels of oil, and
20,343 barrels of water for 67 days in early 19%1. At an assured
price of $30 a barrel (not uncommon in those days) Mr. Bennion's
100% share of his portion of production from No. 1 comes to
approximately $4.00 per day of operation, less his portion of the
substantial cost of lifting and disposing of 20,000 barrels of water
during this production period. During its test period of 77 days,
the Albert Smith No. 2 Well produced 24,677 barrels of oil and 917
barrels of water. At $30 a barrel, Mr. Bennion's 12.5% share of his
portion comes to $6.50 per dayv of operation, with minimal water
disposal costs. Mr. Bennion is deprived of no income. In fact he
has gained. The position 'fr. Pennion arzues 1s one vast

contradiction.

81z Cause No. 139-20, the Poard found that since the Alhert
Smich No. 2 well "is a test wvell and not a production well, the
Plaintiff non-consentin: owner is not required to pav any of the
costs of drilling such well at this time, vhether Tict] is a drv hole
or a producing hole operatin2 durine the LO=-day test perio! . . o .
[Alfrer notice and hearing . . . desiznatina the [uell] as a
producinz well (for an intact unit or unit of decrens
plaintiff . . . will be reauired to pav . . . for Y

share of costs . . . ." (irder, paze 7).

SR , Thw
HDronogrolon: Le
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C. CotucLesIny 9F POINTS IT AUD III:

"r. PRennion's correlative rights to production from the
second vell are governed by and protected by the very same statutes
19 his rizheos to nrodaction from the first vell. TFurcher, the Board
his scrupulously protected his richts at all times during the
quthorizacion process, charzing him for his fair share of costs only
aftwr the well was proven to be economically worthwhile. If the
second well was dry or plaved out before payout, Gulf would never
recover the carried costs. Once again, “Mr. Bennion takes no risk
vhatsoever. Gulf respectfully submits that to allow Mr. Bennion to
take his portion of production from a necessary infill well without
paving his share of costs is to graont hir a windfall and unjust
cnrichment, in contradiction to the iatent behind the Utah
non-consent statute.

STATEMENT OF RELIET SOUGHT

Gulf Nil Corporation respectfully reauests a rehearing, so
that the above issues may be more fully developed, and the plan of
infill developmnt authorized by the Roard be affirmed.

RESPECTFUILY SURITIED this [o+h dey of Seprember, 1985,

HUGH C. QARMNER & ASSOCIATES, P.C.

WAl Epmi

Puch barner

4%/ -

Joan 4, Harja
Atrtoranevs for ?eaoondent
Qulf 0il Corporation




CERTIFICAT™ OF a0nD [ty Ao o A NS

Pursuant to Rule 37¢ad, Utah Rules of Avpellace Procedurs,
counsel for Respondent Gulf 0il Corporation herebyv certifies that
the forezoing Petition for Rehearing 1s preseated in 2ood faith in
accordance vich counsel's understanding of the principles of law and
the facts of this case, and not for the purnose of detav,

The undersigzoed further certifies that on the /O% day of
September, 1985, 4 copies of the Petition for Pehearinz were mailed,
postage prepaid, to Reid Tateoka, Attorney for Plaintiff/Appellant
S. Il. Bennion, at 1200 Kennecott Building, Salt Lale Citv, Utab
34133, and 4 copies were hand-delivered to Barbara /. Roberts,
Attorney for Defendant/Resnondent, Utah Board of 0il, Gas and

ining, at 236 State Capitol Building, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111,

John A. Harja <
Attorney for Gulf 0il Corporation




BEVORE THE BOARD OF OIL AND GAS CONSERVATION
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES
I AHD FOR THE STATE OF UTAH

1N THF MATTER OF 1L APDTLICATION OF
SHELL OIL COMPANY FOR AN ORDER EXTENDING
PKRIiR ORDEPS OF THE BOARD [N CAUSE NO.
119, AS EXIENDFD AND MODIFIED, TO
FURTHER DEFLNE THE SPACED INTERVAL

AU TO COVER ALD IHCLUDE ALDITIONAL
LARDS I8 THE ALTAMGUT FIELU, UUCHESNE
COGNTY, UTAH

ORDER

CAUSE NO. 139-8

Pursuant to Hotice of Hearing dated September 1, 1972, of the Board
of 0il and Gas Conservation, Department of Natural Resources of the State of
Utah, this Cause came on for hearing before sald Board at 10:00 o'clock a.m.
on Wednesday, September 20, 1972, in the State Office Building Auditorium,
First Floor - State Office Building, Salt Lake City, Utah. The following
Board members were present:

Delbert M. Draper, Jr., Esq., Chairman, Presiding
Charles R. Henderson
Robert R. Norman
Evart J. Jensen
AlSo present:

Cleon B. Felghr, Esq., Direcror, Division of 01l and
Gas Conservation

Paul W. Burchell, Chief Petroleum Engineer, Division
of 011 and Gas Conservacion

Gerald Daniels, United States Geological Survey,
Salt Lake City, Utah

Paul E. Reimann, Assistant Attorney General
Appearances were made as follows:

For Shell 011 Company: D. F. Gallion, Esq.
Denver, Colorado

Gregory Williams, Esq.
Salt Lake City, Utah

For Chevron 0Oil Company,
Western Division: William M. Balkovatz, Esq.

Denver, Colorado

For Ute Distriburion Corporation: George C. Morris, Esq.
Salc Lake City, Utah

NOW, THERLFORE, the Board having considered the testimony adduced,
and the exhibits received at said hearing, and being fully advised in the

premises, now makes and enters the following:



FINDINGS

1. Due and regular notice of the time, place and purpose of the
hearing was given to all lnterested parties in the form and manner and within
the time required by law and the rules and regulatians of the Board.

2, The Board has jurisdlction over the matter covered by said Hotice
and over all parties interested therein and has jurisdiction to make and
promulgate the order hereinafter set forth,

3. By Orders entered in Consolidated Causes No. 139-3 and No. 139-4
dated June 24, 1971, and Cause No. 139-5 dated MNovember 17, 1971, the Board
established drilling units comprising each govermmental section for the
production of oil, gas and assoclated hydrocarbons from the interval described
in paragraph No. 7 of said Order in Consolidated Causes No. 139-3 and No. 139-4,
common source of supply underlying the lands in the Altamont Area, all as
more particularly described in said Consolidated Causes No, 139-3 and No. 139-4,
and Cause No. 139-5.

4. Further drilling and development operations and the i{nformation
and data obtained therefrom, both within and beyond the presently defined
boundaries of spaced lands described in said Orders in Consolidated Causes
No. 139-3 and No. 139~4, and Cause No. 139-5, subsequent to the dates of
said Orvders, indicate that the present spaced interval and spaced area as
described in said prior Orders should now be further defined and enlarged
as follows:

(a) The spaced interval for the common source of
supply underlying lands described in paragraph 4(b)
below should be defined as:
The interval from the top of the Lower Green River
formation (TGR3 marker) to the base of the Green
River-Wasatch formations (top of Cretaceous), which
base is defined as the stratigraphic equivalent of
the Dual Induction Log depths of 16,720 feet in the
Shell, Ute 1-18BS well located in the S%HE of
Section 18, Township 2 South, Range 5 West, U.S.M.,
and 16,970 feet in the Shell, Broctherson 1-11B4
well located in the S&YNE% of Section 11, Township
2 South, Range &4 West, U.S.M.

{b) The lands known and believed to be underlain by the
common source of supply from which oil, gas and
associated hydrocarbons can be produced from (Ue

spaced interval of the Green River-Wasatch formativas



in Duchesne County, Utah, as herelnabove defined
in paragraph 4(a), include the following described
lands, which include the lands described in said
Consolidated Causes No. 139-3 and No. 139~4, and

Cause No. 139-5, to wit:

Township 1 South, Range 3 West, U.S.M.
Sections 3 through 10: All

Sections 15 through 22: All
Secctions 27 through 34: All)

Tounship 1 South, Range 4 West, U.S.M.
Sections 1 through 36: All 4

Township 1 South, Range 5 West, U.5.M.
Sections 10 through 17: All ~
Sections 20 through 36: ALl-"

Township 1 South, Range 6 West, U.S5.M.
Sections 25 and 26: All
Sections 35 and 36: All

Township 2 South, Range 3 West, U.S.M.
Sections 3 through 8: All
Sections 17 through 20: All
Sections 29 through 32: All

Township 2 South, Range & West, U.S.M.
Sections 1 through 36: All

Township 2 South, Range 5 West, U.S.M.
Sections 1 through 36: All

Township 2 South, Range 6 West, U.S.M.
Sections 1 through 36: All -

Township 2 South, Range 7 West, U.S.M,
Section 36: All

Township 3 South, Range 3 West, U.S.M.
Sections S through 8: All
Sections 17 through 20: All
Secrions 29 through 32: All

Township 3 South, Range 4 West, U.S.M.
Sections 1 through 36: All

Township 3 South, Range 5 West, U.S.M.
Sections I through 36: All

Township 3 South, Range 6 West, U.S.M.
Sections ) through 6: All

Secrions 11 through 14: All

Sections 23 through 26: A1l
Sectioas 35 and 36: All /

Township 3 South, Range 7 West, U.S.M.
Section 1: All

Township & South, Range 3 West, U.S.M.
Sections 5 and 6: All




Township 4 South, Range & West, U.%§ M.
Sections 1 through ©6: All

Township 4 South, Range 5 West, U.: .M.
Sections 1 through b6: All

Township 4 South, Raunge 6 West, U.§.M.
Sections I and 2: ALl

5. One well on a governmental sectlon consisting of 640 acres, more
or less, will efficiently and economically drain the recoverable oil, gas
and associated hydrocarbons from the aforesaid common source of supply under-
lying the lands described in paragraph 4(b) above, and that a governmental
sectlon drilling unit is not larger than the maximum area that can be
efficiently and economically drained by one well.

6. The Orders entered In Consolldated Causes No. 139-3 and No. 139-4,
and Cause No. 139-5 provide that the permitted well for each drilling unit
shall be located in the center of the NE't of the governmental sectlon comprising
such drilling unit with a tolerance of 660 feet in any direction; provided
that an exception to saild tolerance may be granted without a hearing where a
topographical exception 1s deemed necessary. Such provisions in said prior
orders should continue to apply provided further that exceptions to such
permitted well location and tolerance allowance should be allowed where needed
for wells presently drilling or producing oil, gas and associated hydrocarbons
from the common source of supply in the Altamont Area.

7. Any and all Orders of the Board heretofore promulgated concerning
the Altamont Area, Duchesne Cognty, Utah, which are inconsistent with the
QOrder hereinafter set forth should be vacated upon the effective date of
this Order.

ORDER

IT IS TUEREFORE ORDERED:

A. That 640 acre drilling units be and the same are hereby established
comprising each governmental section, or governmental lots correspondling thereto,
for the development and production of oil, gas and associated hydcocarbons
from the interval described in paragraph 4(a) abuve, underlying the lands
described in paragrapi 4(b) above.

B. That no more than one well shall be drilied on any such unit for
the production of oil, gas and associated hydrocarbons rrom the common source

of supply, and that the permitted well for each drilling unit shall be located



in the cencer of the NEY of the governmental section comprising such untc,
with a tolerance of 660 feet in any direction; provided that an exception

to soid tnlersnce may be granted administratively without a hearing where

a tupographical exception is deemed necessary; and provided that exceptions

to the permitted well location and tolerance allowance are hereby allowed
where needed for all wells presently drilling or producing oil, gas and
assoclated hydrocarbons from the common source of supply in the Altamont Area,
and such exception wells shall be the permitted wells for the drilling units
on whirh they are located.

C. That any and all Orders of the Board heretofore promulgated
which are inconsistent with this Ogrder are hereby vacated.

D. That this Order ls a temporary order and the Board, on its own
motion, or any interested party may file an application requesting a hearing
to present new evidence covering the matters set forth herein,

E. That the Board retains continuing jurisdiction of all matters
covered by this Order and particularly retains continuing jurisdiction to
make further orders as appropriate and authorized by statute and applicable
regulations.

ENTERED AMD EFFECTLVE THIS 20th day of September, 1972.

BOARD OF OIL AND GAS CONSERVATION
OF THE STATE OF UTAHN

@MA\

Delbert M. Draper, Jr.

. .
/
S LT, (7, e YV

Charles R. Henderson

Robert R. Norman

@(v { 4 L'/L(,d_,v“/w/

Evart J. Jensj'n \5

I certify that this is a true and
coriest copy of the Order issued in
Cange Moo 139-8.

H ST Ander
Lelevare of the fBoard
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B. Statutory Authority.

Pursuant to Svction 40-6-6{d)
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€. Conclusion

In conclusion, the Moard fonds thoar the Dol ol Ty on
have a mandate under Scotion 1 6-1 of the O3l el a, . Crat e
Act to maxamise recovery of o) amd gasn from the Bl bel ‘\\mm‘m:
Field. Turther, the Board fainds that the Davivrn athan the
scope of its delegated authority to approve the Albert tanith 2
8CS as an infill test well.

11. Should the Albert Smith 2-8C5 well be enjoined from operation

as being in violation of the Board’'s Order an Cause Na. 130-87
The Plaintiff has asserted that the Division’s approval of
and Gulf's drilling of the Albert Smith #2-8CS antfill test well
should be enjoined as vinlative of the Roard's Order an Caune No
139-8.  This Order established a spacing pattern which cnsbles an
operator to drill one well in a 640-acre drillang unit.  The Plarntaft
maintains that approval and drilling of the sceond well), Albhert
Smith #2-8C5, violatcs Section 40-6-nH(c), U.C.A., 1953 which requirces
that:
Subject to the provisions of this Act, the Order
establishang drilling units shall diredt that nu more
than one well shall be drilled for productzon from the
common source of supply on any urit ... (Lephasis adided)
In that the Albert Smith #I-8C5 anfill test well was approved
by the Division as a 60-day test well which was not to be produced
!

simultancously with the Albert Smith #1-8C5 productron vell atter

the 60-day test period, 1t is clear thot the sccond wefl vinlates
neither the Board Orvder in Cause Ho.o 139-8 nor Sevtion d0-6 6],
U.C.A., 1953, The approval detter Crom the Divaon dated Augnn g

25, 1980, expressly states that

thitens stherwsse autboarimed by the Foard o o0l
and Minany, presluoction waln e Yamgted fo vne Shert ath
FL-8CS el ] after the wpproced tostun peraol,
Therefore, an that the Albere Coatho 20 87 w0 0 g et ael]
rather than a production well, the contire ] o prratien of thar weld
during the approved test perped dovs net o cabare phe onloand Ga

Conservation At nor the Board’s Ordor an Coue e 100 F el e oy

not be enjoincd.
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111, Costs of brilling.
In that the Albert Simith #2-805 well is a test well and not
4 production well, the Plaintiff non-conscnting owner is not required
to pay any of the costs of drilling such well at this time, whether
the Gulf test well 15 a Jry hole or a producing hole opcrating during
the H0-day test period
After proper notice and hearing, the foard could designate
the Gulf test well for production if the well substantially improves
recovery of oil snd gas from the Blucbell Altamont Field. Such
a designation could occur as an exception location to the present
location ta the present spacing pattern, as an order shutting-in
the Albert Smith #1-8C5 well and designating the Albert Smith #2.
8C5 well as the producing well for the unit, or as an order designating
the test well as the producing well in a drilling unit of decreased
size from that ordercd in Cause No. 139-8. 1In any case, after notice
and hearang and issuance of a Board Order designating the Albert
Smith #2-8C5 as a producing well, the plaintiff, as a non-consenting
owner will be required to pay Gulf for his pioportionate share of
the costs of the well under Scction 40-6-6, U.C.A., 1953, and implementing
rules and regulations, Oil and gas produced during the test period
from the Albert Smith #2-8CS well, if any threre be, shall offsect
production costs of the Albert Smith #2-8CS well if said well is
designated as a production well.
oRDLR
1. The Division of Oal, Gas and Mining was acting within the scope
af it authority under the 0il and Gas Conservation Act and Board polilcy con-
cerning the Bluchell Altamont Field 1n granting Gulf 0il Company's application
for the nfield test well Albert Smith #2-8CS.
2. The approval and drilling of the infield test well Albert Smith
£2-8U5 were wot violative of cither the Board Order in Cause No. 139-8 nor

Aection A0-6-6(c), U C.A., 1953, Therefore, production of said well for the
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test period approved by the Division shall not be enjorned.

3. Until such time as the Albert Smith #2-805 well as approved by the
Board of 01l, Gas and Mining as a producing well, the Plaintaff shall not
be charged for production ¢osts. At such tuime as the Board, after notice
and hearaing, designates the test well as a production well, the Plantaff
as non-conscnting owner, will be required to pay Gulf {or his proportionate
share of the cost of the well pursuant to applicable laws and rcgulations
governing the allocation of such costs. If the Albert Smith #2-8C5 well is
designated as a production well, all oil and gas produced during the test
period shall offset the production costs of the well.

4. This Order is issucd on an emergency basis pursuant to Section 40-
6-8, U.C.A., 1953, and shall remain effective for 15 days {rom the date of
issuance. Notice is hercby given that any objection to this Order must be
teccived Friday, October 17, 1980, as to why the Board should not accept this
Lmergency Order as a final order at the Board's hecuring on October 23, 1980,
at 10:00 a.m., in the Wildlife Rcsources Auditorium, 1596 West North Temple
Salt Lake City, Utah.

SO ORGLAED this 3rd day of October, 1980, by the RBoard of 0il, Gas and

Wl A et ——

Charles R. tlenderson
Chairman

Minang.

1 certify that this 1s a
true and correct copy of the
Order issued in Cause No. 129-20.

e N ) RPN
Marjorie L. Andersen
Secretary of the Board




RECOIL THe BOARD OF 010, GAS AND MINING
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CAUSE NO. 139-20(1D)

The Board of Oul, Gas and Mining, State of Utah, conducted a hearing
s Thworsdas  Apre) 30, 1981, at 9 00 a.m., an the Asrport lloliday Inn -
Executive Conterence Room, 1659 West North Temple, Salt Lake Cruy, Utah,
m the above entitled matter, at which time the Board entered an Order
At the time saird Order was entered, there was a question as the whether
the Board was properly constituted. Therefore, a hearing was held on September
24 and continucd until October 22, 1981 to allow a newly constituted Board
to reconsider this application.
The following Board Members werc present.
Charles R. Henderson, Chairman
term Olsen, Presiding Chairman
£. Steele Mclntyre
John L. Bell
Margaret R. Bird
Robert R. Norman
Appearances for the partics were made by:
Peter Stirba, Attorney for S. H. Bennion
Hugh C. Garner, Attorney for Gulf 011 Corporation
NOW, THEREFORE, the Board having considered this matter, now makes
and enters the following

FINUINGS

(1) Duv and regular natice of the date, place and purpose of the hearing
was given to all intercstud parties as requiced by law and the rules and
1ogulations,

{2y The Board has jurisdiction over the matter covered by said Notice
i over all parties anterested therein and has jurisdiction to make and

fromulgate the Urder hereinatter set out.



(3) On September 20, 1972, the Boird entered an Grder an Cause Ho.
139-8 spacing the location and drilling of wells on blo avre units in the
Altamont Bluebell Field, Duchesne County, Utah, and requirting “"that no more
than one well shall be drilled in any such unit tor the production ot uil,
gas and associated hydrocarbons from the common source of supply **=',

(1) On Avgust 25, 1980, the Division granted approval to Guif Oal

Corporation to drill the Albert Smith No. I-8C5 well as an oantall test well

located within the area spaced under the Order 1ssucd an Caune No. 139
Said well was approved as a 60-day test drilling well and the Division's
letter of approval disallowed simultaneous production of the test well and
the Albert Smith No. 1-8C5 well which was then capable of producing orl,
beyond the period of testing prescribed by the Division.

(3} The Board finds that the Board and Division have a mandate under
Section 40-6-1 of the 01l and Gas Conservatioh ACt to maximise recovery
of said resources and to protect correlative rights including those of S.
H. Bennion, a non-consent intercst owner.

{6) Albert Smith No. 1-8CS well was shut-in on or prior to the end
of the prescribed 60-day test period and remains in a shut-in status. Further,
the Board finds that said Albert Smith No. 1-8C5 well was, at the time of
being shut-in, at the point of marginal recovery of further oil and/or gas.

ORDER

(1) The Albert Smith No. 2-8C5 well is hereby approved as a producing
well and the designated well for said spacing unit.

(2) The Albert Smith No. 1-8C5 well shall remain shut-in until further
Order of the Board.

(3} S. Il. Benmion, delfined as a non consenting owner, pursuant to
his counsel's letter received by this Board September 2, 1950 (Caune No.
139-20}) is required to pay Culf 011 Corporation for his proportionate share
ot the cost of drilling and completang the Albert Smith Noo 2-8U5 well pursuant
to the Order of this Board, from and out of production frem sand well and
attributed to his minvral anterest ownership

(3) S, . Bennuon shal) be charged, during the testin peroad of saad
Albert Smith Mo, 2-8C5 well, for his proportinnate share b the proelaction

costs.



157 As the designated production well for said spacing unit, all oil
nd gas prodouced, saved and marketed from the Albert Smith No. 2-8C5 well

duraing the test period and thereafter shall be credited as an offset against

the nuen consenting owner's proportionate share of the cost of drilling and
vempieting savd well untal such time as the operator shall have recouped
S 0 Bennion's said share of such costs,

101 By Wrder Mo, 139-18 of this Board dated Jonuary 24, 1980 said
spavang unit was pooled for the development and operation thereof for the
piotection of correlative rights. The provisions of Section 40-6-6, Utah
Code annotated, 1953 and specifically subsections (g), (1) and (2), as said
statutory provisions relate to the recoupment of costs by the operator from
S. M. Bennion's owner‘s share of such production, shall apply and Gulf 0il
Corporation, as operator, shall have the right to recoup its costs advanced
from the account of S. H. Bennion in the percentages so provided.

{7) At such time as S. if. Bennion's proportionate share of the drilling,
conpleting and production costs for the Albert Smith No. 2-8C5 well are
so recouped by the operator, from and out of production derived from said
well, S. H. Bennion shall be enritled to take his proportionate share of
production in kind, subject to the provisions of said Order of this Board
Nu. 139-18 of January 24, 1980. Subject to the same conditions, S. H,
Bennion shall be entitled to take his proportionate share of natural gas
products produced from said well, provided, hawever, that S. H. Bennion
provide the necessary facilities for the taking of said natural gas products
1n hind and does not cause the operator any additional cost in equipment
or otherwise 1n accomodating such taking.

(8) 5. H. Bennion 1s entitled to receive and Gulf shall tender a 1/8th
cost-free royalty 1n kind beginning with the first production of said Albert
Srath Noo 2-8C5 well,

() This Order 1s re-atfirmed and shall be retroactive to the 30th
dav ot April, 1981, however, for the purposes of an appeal, this Order is
fiot ontered untal Ovtober 22, 1981,

S ORDERED THIS 22HD DAY OF OCTOBER, 1981,



STATE U1 YUTAH
BOARD OF OLL, GAS ALD MIING

N 2
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Charles R ifeiderson, Charrman

Ol —

A e N - -
Herm Olsceo, Presyding Chaviman

JUE S [P
Jofm L. Bell N

AT
Marguret R. Bird

iy ARSI

. E. Stecle Mclintyre [/
7

Robert i Norman §

I certify that this is a true
ané correct copy of the Order
issued in Cause No. 139-20(B).

Mariorxé L. Anderson
Secretary of the Board
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BEFORE THE BOARD OF OIL, GAS AND MINING
DEPARTMENT OF NATURAL RESOURCES

“in and for the STATE OF UTAH

car

' - = . e e~ - - e -

IN THE .MATTER OF THE
APPLICATION OF S. H. .
BENNION FOR A DETERMINA-
TION AS TO THE PRESENT

% : C - 72 7%,
)
STATUS OF THE ALBERT )
)
)
)
)

CAUSE NO. 139-20(B)

SMITH 2-8CS WELL LOCATED
IN SECTION .8, TOWNSHIP 3
SOUTH, RANGE 5 WEST, USM,
DUCHESNE COUNTY, UTAH.

~rogn - - T o

BE-IT REMEMBERED that on the 30th day
of Apfii; 1931, a hearing was held before the Board
6f Oil:.Gaé‘é Miﬁing in the above-entitled matter,
and said hearing was taken'before Athena Moore, a
Certified Shorthand Reporter and Notary Public in
and “for the State of Utah holding Utah C.S.R. License
No. 88, commencing at the hour of 12:00 p.m. in the
Executive Conference Room, Holiday Inn, 1659 West

North Temple, Salt Lake City, Utah.
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awner, for that matter could be any owner, 1is
entitled to receive a basic landowner's one-eighth
cost-free royalty. And although there is not a
precedent, 1it's typically that most folks aren't
in the position that Mr. Bennion is in that thev
can. receive their product in kind. But in research-
ing: the law and I submitted a memorandum on this
point previously, there is nothing that says that
that royalty has to be in cash. Clearly I think
where you are dealing with constitutionally vested
fights, namely the right of Mr. Bennion to receive
the benefit of his property. It seems to me a
better position is to establish that he has a right
to. receive it in kind.
- I would also like to indicate that on
a. companion case in dealing with Mr. Bennion and
Gulf, I believe that the Board's order expressly
authorized him to receive his one-eighth rovalty in
kind on wells that have already been paid out.
The Board has already addressed that issue and
decided that position in ocur favor.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are there any other
questions? (No- response)

You may proceed.

MR. GARNER: My name 1s Hugh warneT,

w
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and I'm speaking here on behalf of Gulf 0il Corp-
oration. Mr, Stirba'sbletter that precipitated
this hearing was dated March 17, 1981, and it was
addressed to Mr. Feighf. "Dear Cleon: Gulf is

now producing its iﬂfill tesfing well in Section 8,
Township 3 South, Rénge 5 West, Duchesne County,
Utah, for more than 60 davs. Accordingly, pursuant
to a coby of the Board's order, a copy of which I
have:enclosed, please schedule a hearing on this
matter for the March Board meeting."

We filed a motion basically for the

- purpose of having the Albert Smith No. 2 well desig-

nated as a spacing unit well. Mr. Stirba continues
in his letter, quoting:. "It is also my understanding
that the‘test;well in Section 19, Range 3 South,
Township’' 5 West, in Duchesne County, Utah, has also
been producing for more than 60 days and I would
suggest that both these matters be heard at the
same time." And [ believe that is the Voda No. 2
Well has also been producing for more than 60 days.
The notice of hearing addressed only the Albert
Smith No. 2 Well, but nomention is made of the
Josephine Voda Well, but we are prepared to address
that question and satisfy the Board on the testing

and producing record of both wells.
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Let me call as my first witness,
Mr. Anthony. Will you sgand to he sworn, please?

. MR. CHAIRMAN: Before you get into that,
did you say the Voda Well?

MR. GARNER® Voda, V-o-d-a.
- . ; MARK ANTHONY ,
called as a witnesg by and on behalf of Gulf 011,
being first duly sworn, was examined and testified
as follows:
EXAMINATION
BY' MR. GARNER:
Q Mr. Anthony, will you state your full

name, place of residence and place of employment?

A Mark J. Anthony, and I am presently

residing in Casper, Wyoming, and am employed by

Gulf 0Oil.

Q Have you testified before this Board
before?

A No, I have not.

Q I'm not going to qualify this gentleman
has an expert witness. He will be merelv talking

from the records that I would like to qualify for
the Board as a person qualified to speak.
MR. CHAIRMAN: That will be fine.

Q (By Mr. Garner) Wwould vou g.ve us vour

=N
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educational background, please?

A Yes, I have a Chemical Engineering
Degree from the University of Oklahoma, and I went
to work for GulZ up on my graduation at that time
and with the exception of about five years in the

military, [ have been with Gulf all that time.

Q ~In what capacity have you worked for
Gulf?

A As a petroleum engineer.

Q Are you familiar with this particular
area?

A Yes, I am.

Q What we are discussing today in Duschesne
County?

A Yes.

Q Are you familiar with the company records

that provide us with productive data as to these
particular wells?

A Yes, I am.

Q I want to read into the record a letter
which 1s from Mr. Minder of this Division authorizing
the drilling of this particular infill well. It's
addressed to Gulf 0il Corporation. It's dated
August 25, 1980. Quoting, "Insofar as this office

is concerned, approval to drill the above-referred

11
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to oil and gas wells--" and [ think that's a mistype--
"as infirll test.wells are hersby granted. However,
these wells are approved as a od-dav test well,

and at no time may these wells in the Albert Smith
No., 18C5, located in .the same section, be produced
simultaneously -after -the 60 day testing period.
Unless.otherwise authorized by the Board of 011,
Gas and Mining, production will be limited to the
Albert Smith No. 18CS Wells after the approved

testing period.'" That's basically what we are

concerned with. The rest of it is just procedural

with respect to filing all the forms and so on.

Getting back to you, Mr. Anthony, we are
talking about the Albert Smith No. 2 Well.
Will you-state to the Board the spud
date of that well?
A It was spudded-on September 2, 1980.
Q Is it correct to say that the notice
of intention- to drill which was approved by the
0il and Gas Board was dated August 25, 19307
A Yes, sir.
Q The well is drilled and we are down to
the point of doing some production. When was the
first productive set of perforations made in this

well?
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A The determination of the productive
intervals was dn February S of 1981. Their
perforated interval was from 9,852 feet to 98 feet,
six foot intervdl. Ninety-eight seventy to eighty,
and 9,886 to 90, And the first productive test was,
of course, February 5, of 1981 which produced S12
barrels of oil, zero water.

MR: CHAIRMAN: " What was that date?

THE WITNESS: February $ of '81.

Q- (By+ Mr. Garner) Give us the production,
pleasé.

A It produced SIZ barrels of oil and zero
barrels - of water and 656- mcf of gas on a 15/64 inch

choke, tubing pressure 1,300 psi.

Q Now, 1is this based on a 24-hour test?
A Yé&s, sir.
Q So we take as the first production date

of this well for testing purposes, February § of
1981, is that correct?

A " :Yes, sir.

Q  Will you state to the Board when the
Albert Smith No. 1 well was shut in?

A We closed in the No. 1 on March 10, 1981.

Q Has there been any production from that

well at any time subsequent to March 10, 19817
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A No, sir.
Q And what was the well making at that
date?

A At that time 1t was making from 18 to

20 barrels of o1l and possiblv 230 barrels of water.

Q Is that an a per day Tate.
A Yes.
Q Therefore, can you 'state unequivocally

to the Board that we did not produce the two wells
in-excess of the 60-day test period?

A . Yes, we can say that.

Q And we can also state the No. 1.well
was shut in and will not be produced until further
order of this Board? -

“A .7 That is correct.
MR. GARNER: Are there any questions on
that score?
MR. CHAIRMAN: [ guess not. Proceed.
“=Q- ' ' (By Mr. Garmner) Let's address the
Joseph Voda No. 1 Well and the No. 2 Well.
What is the date of the authority from
this Division to granting the companv the Tight to
drill this No. 2 infill well?

A December lst of 1930.

Q Can vou give us the date 1T was spudded”
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A Yes, on December 13th of '80..

Q Can you give the date of completion?

A Okay-ﬁ

Q The date oﬁ»comp;etion for testing ‘
purposes? . N

A March 12, 1981 we gtarped_}esting_our
first .set of perfarated intervals.

Q And what were those intervals?

A . We perforated from 9,270 feet to 80
feet; 9,252 to,56;V9228 to 34; 9,190 to 9,204,
9,110 ta 28.

Q . What was the production data?

- AL The‘tubing.p?essure was 55 psi.ﬁ It

flowed on a Z4jhour test; zera water and zera ail

and 599 mcf of gas.

Q Referring to April 4, 1981, what further
testing procedure were initiated?

A On that .particular date we squeezed off
the perforations, the above-mentioned perforations
and drilled out the cement to 9,365 feet. At that
time we broke out the bottom and circulated on down

to approximately 10,000 feet. And on 4-12-81, we

perforated the intervals 9,860 to 76, and--

MR. CHAIRMAN: --could you give us that

again?
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_ A Yes. 9,860 to 76. On the 13th of [
April fiowed zero oil, two barrels of water and \
on the i4th we started swabbing the well and recovered
77 barrels of water, zero oil: On the 15th we swabbed

and had 162 barrels of water, zero oil, and mostly

this water is load water from the treatment we did
- PR

for the perforations to open them up.
On the 17th of March we swabbed 8 barrels

of_wgter and zero.oil. At that particular time on

the 17th we set a cast iron bridge plug at 9,840.

We put two sacks of cement on top of it to close

off those lower perforations. We then perforated on

‘the 21st of April from 9,585 to 90; 9,621 to 253

9,698 to 9,701; 9,704 to 07; 9,728 to 32; 9,748 to
52..hWé swabbed the well at 60 barrels of oil, 30
bar;els of water, tubing:.pressure of 100 psi, and
that was an 11 hour test.

Q I want to re-emphasize for the Board's
information; the first testing was conducted in this
No. 2 well on March 12, 1981, is that correct?

| A Yes.

Q Can you give us the current production

for the first 10 day of the month of April for the

Voda No. 1 Well?

A The Voda No. 1 for the first 10 days 1in
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April averaged 10 barrgls qf 0il and 12 barrels of
water per day. N

Q That's per day?

A Yesr 5 N

MR. GARNER: That's all I have of this

witness except I would like to address a question
of the Boqrd.' It's not clear from the letters
of authorization as to when the 60 day period
does rtun. It's obvious to the Board that it did

not exceed the 60-day testing period or production

period of both wells; both the Albert Smith and the

"Voda wells. But I am curious about the Board’s

interpretation of its own authorization.  In a
case such as ;he‘Voda Well, we're getting no pro-
du;tion,_but we Teceived 60 barrels of o0il on

an l;:hour test on the let'of April.

Are we talking about production testing
of commercial production or are we talking about
trying to bring a well on where there is no com-
mercial production at all. It's just a pure test.
I don't know what the language of the Division's
letter means in that sense.

MR. CHAIRMAN: I'm not sure if it's
fair for you to ask us.

MR. GARNER: It is helpful to us to
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have that determination, then we are not going to !
L ]
have these kinds of assertions bv Mr. Stirba that
we werTe exceeding soﬁeihing when, in fact, we were
nét é;éeeding any 60 dav period at all. It would
be Helpful’for us to know just exactly where our
parameters are. Mr. Minder is the author of the
letter, mavbe he can give us some help.
. e
MR. MINDER: I prefer Jack speak on that.
MR. FEIGHT: ‘Ouf interpretation would be
that we are concefﬁed with always the protection

of correlative rights. If you are swabbing water,

obviously you're not taking oil from somebody.

What we are saying, if you're getting water, you
are not violating the correlative rights of the
other party.' dur idea éf a test period would be
60 days of ;cﬁual festing which you actually pro-
duced oil. lIf you shut down for a week or two
weeks to perforate, and set a cast iron plug or
something like this, we would not consider that
in the testing pefiod. We are talking about 60
days of actually tééting the well. We view that
because we have the same problem relative to when
we let a well produce and flare gas for a 60-day
test period. It's the gas we are trying to con-

serve. It doesn't start from April lst to March

18
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15 or something like that and stop. May 14 or
June 14 or whatever.

MR. GARNER: To continue that line
of reasoning, frgmAApril 21st forward, it probably
would be the beginning of a measured period of
60 days. That's the first time oil is produced.

MR. FEIGHT: ~That's what we would
consider as the ftaff. This has never been inter-
preted by a court and never had any rulings. In
fact, we never had any rulings on the 0il and Gas
Conservation Act in Utah.

' MR. GARNER: The issue i1s moot as of
this moment because we shut in the Albert No. 1.
That is not being produced and will not be pro-
duced until this Board so orders. But we don't
know about .the Voda Well and what's going to happéﬁ
on it. It might be something the Board would likg
to considgr\under this situation. We're not
talking about detailed engineer reservoir character-
1stics: We're talking about the fact that the
well has been swabbed and has been perforated. No
well has been produced for any amount of time. There
has been no production.

MR. CHAIRMAN: Are you continuing to

work on the well?

4%a3
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MR. ANTHONY: Yes. Of course, right
now we- have found commercial production, so we
are on a daily.production test basis at this time.
Since- the last date, I think it was April. The
first production test was on April 21, I believe,
with commercial oil.

, MR. CHAIRMAN: How much was that
producing on; have you been producing since that
time? We know so little about this well that we
have to ask you.

MR. ANTHONY: I don't know what it has
ﬁade since that time.

MR. GARNER: The last time was the
2lst. -

- - MR. ANTHONY: Yes. The last date I have

is the 2lst.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You don't know how much
it is producing.

MR. ANTHONY: No, not at this particular
time.

MR. CHAIRMAN: You don't even know if it
is going to be a commercial well?

MR. ANTHONY:. No, we don't know that.
The only thing we do know is that it was making

approximately 60 barrels of oil. We have no idea
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of what the extent of the reservoir is. We can't
know-that at this time. We realize that this whole
field is——apbarently'fhe reservoir due tc the
geological structure of the”thing--it's almost
impossible to determine what's going to happen from
one well to the next as far as éorrelating sands and
production.
""MR. STIRBA: May I ask a few questions
of ‘the witness at this fime, or do you want to wait
until after lunch? ‘
MR. CHAIRMAN: I think we'd better wait
Qntil after lunch.
MR. STIRBA:  These gentlemen have a
tentative reservation on a 1 o'clock flight. I
don't have much more to go-on with respecf to this.
MR. CHAIRMAN: How long will itvtake?
MR. GARNER: Mr. Stirba is going to
be the judge of how long it is going to take.

. MR. STIRBA: I don't want to make much
to do about nothing, Mr. Chairman. But there 1is
evidence that I have that that well is producing
as of January 12 which was pursuant to the records
that Gulf sent Mr. Bennion. Additionally, there
are state reports that indicate that that well was

producing in January and in February and in March.
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PETER STIRBA

STZPHERT W. RUPP

MKAY, BURTQI, THURMAN & CONDIE
Attomeys for Plaintaiff

500 Kennecott Building

Salt Lake City, Utah 84133
Telerhcne: (801) 521-413S

N THE DISTRICT COURT OF THE THIRD JUDICIAL DISTRICT

IN AND FOR SALT LAKE COUNTY, STATE OF UT2H

S. H. BENNIQN,

Plaintifsf,
V.

JLE OIL CORPCRATIN, a
Pannsylvania carporation, and
the UTAH STATE BCARD OF OIL,
GAS AND MINING, an Agency
of the State of Utah,

AFFIDAVIT OF
STEPHEN W. RUPP

Civil No. C-82-458

Defendants.

State of Utah )
County of Salt Lake )

ss.
STEPHEN W. RUPP, being first duly sworn upan cath depcses and says:
1) I am the attommey for Plaintiff.
2) Attached hereto are certified, true and correct copies of docurents,
on. file with the Divisian of Oil, Gas and Mining, namely:
a) Order in Cause No. 139-8 dated Spet. 20, 1972
b) Emrergency Order and Order to Show Cause in Cause No. 139-20
dated October 3, 1980
c) amended Order in Cause No. 139-~20(B) dated Oct. 22, 1981
d-e) 2nnual Monthly Productian Rerarts of Albert Smith 1-8C5 well
for the years 1980 and 1981
£)  2rnual Mthly Procucticn Report of Albert Swmith 2-8C5 well for

the year 1981




g-0) Monthly Reports of Operation and Well Status

Reports for Albert Smith 2-8CS well for the
months January through September, 1982.

p) Motion of Gulf 01l of approximately April 16,

1981 in Cause No. 139-20(B).

.
o~ |

daylof _—Kr=olL qggs

)2

Dated this

Stephqn W. Rupp:

scribed and sworn to

, 1982.

Ngt & { HuDl‘ey

My Commission expires:
Y P 1ng a

Lla {31" SLC Ulufv

CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE

I certify that a true and correct copy of the foregoing
Affidavit and attachments was hand delivered this _ <7 day
of zgnwwEXN/, 1982 to Hugh C. Garner, 310 S. Main, #1400, salt
Lake City, Utah 84101, and Barbara Roberts, Room 115 State Capit:
Building, Salt Lake City, Utah 84111. <//ﬂ N
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IN THE SUPREME COURT OF THE STATE OF UTAH

-===-00000-~=--
S. H. Bennion, No. 19144
Plaintiff and Appellant,
v.
Gulf 01l Corporation, a Pennsylvania FILED

Corporation and the Utah State Board August 19, 1985
cf 0il1, Gas & Mining, an agency of
the State of Utah,
Defendants and Respondents. Geoffrey J. Butler, Clerk

HOWE, Justice: \\\\\\\\

Appellant S. H. Bennion appeals from a summary
judgment granted in favor of respondents Gulf 0il Corporation
and the Utah State Board of 0il, Gas, and Mining. He seeks
reversal of the judgment and contends that summary judgment in
his favor should have been granted.

Bennion holds mineral interests which without his
consent were made part of an oil drilling unit designated by
the Board, as permitted by the 0il and Gas Conservation Act,
U.C.A., 1953, §§ 40-6-1 to -19 (1981). By a 1972 order of the
Board, Gulf was the producer authorized to drill the single
production well allowed on the 640-acre unit. As a
nonconsenting interest owner, Bennion was entitled under the
act “o his proportionate share of the oil and gas produced
from the unit minus his proportionate share of the cost of
drilling, production, and maintenance.

Gulf drilled a producing well on the 640-acre unit
and recouped its drilling costs. Bennion was thus entitled to
receive and in fact was receiving his prcportionate share of
the 0il and gas produced on the unit minus the relatively low
cost of production and maintenance. Without notice or
hearing, but with permission given by a staff engineer of the
Division of 0il, Gas, and Mining on August 25, 1980, Gulf
commenced drilling a second well as an infill test well within
the 640-acre unit. Bennion petitioned the Board to enjoin the
drilling on the basis that a second well was in vio}ation of
the 0il and Gas Conservation Act and the Board’s prior
unitization order. The Board determined that the drilling of

_a second well as a test well was not in violation ofilts prior
order and that, inasmuch as it was a test well, Bennion was

not required to pay any of ~its-drilring-costs. —However, the
Board added that if it were to redesignate the'test well.as a
production well, Bennion would then be responsible for his
proportionate share of those costs. Subsequently, Gulf "shut
in" the first well and applied to have the second well



designated as the producticn well. After a hearing, the Board
changed the designation of the second well from a test well to
that of the unit’s producticn well and ordered Bennion to pay
his share of the $1.4 million drilling cost. Bennion appealed
the Board’s order to the district court.

Pursuant to U.C.A., 1953, 5 40-6-10(b), appellant was
entitled on his appeal to a determination of the '"issues on
both questions of law and fact" by the district court. On the
parties’ cross-motions for summary judgment, the court
determined from the transcript of the hearing before the Board
that the Board had acted properly and within its authority.
Summary Jjudgment in favor of Gulf was entered.

For purposes of this opinion, we shall assume that
the 0il and Gas Conservation Act allows a staff engineer to
authorize the drilling of a test well on a producing unit. Ve
note that the issue is raised, but not argued, in the briefs
of counsel and that the act is not clear on the issue. See
U.C.A., 1953, § 40-6-3. However, even assuming that the
statute allows such a delegation of authority, we cannot agree
with the district court’s affirmance of the Board’s order
redesignating the test well as the production well and holding
Bennion responsible for a proportionate share of the cost of
drilling the second well.

Although the 0il and Gas Conservation Act was first
enacted in 1955, we have had little opportunity to construe
its provisions. A cursory reading of the act discloses,
however, that in at least two places it is contemplated that
only one well should be drilled per unit. For example,
section 40-6-6(b) provides:

In establishing a drilling unit, the
acreage to be embraced within each unit
and the shape thereof shall be determined
by the board from the evidence introduced
at the hearing but shall not be smaller
nor greater than the maximum area that can
be efficiently and ecconomically drained by
cne well.

(Emphasis added.) Subsection (c) provides:

Subject to the provisions of this act, the
order establishing drilling units shall
direct that no mere than one well shall be
drilled for producticn from the common

e  e—— _source of supply on any unit . . .

(Emphasis added.) We find nothing in the act which expressly

————=ilows—a test well-to-displace—theproduction well from a
common source of supply on the unit. The only reference to
the drilling of additional wells is found in subsection (d)
where it 1s provided:

No. 19144
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When found necessary for the prevention of
waste, or to avoid the drilling of
unnecessary wells, or to protect
correlative rights, an order establishing
drilling units in a mool may be modified
by the board to increase the size of
drilling units in the pool or any zone
thereof, to decrease the size of drilling
units or to permit the drilling of
additional wells on a reasonably uniform
plan in the pool, or any zone thereof.

The Board’s order in the instant case did not purport to
comply with this subsection. The order did not authorize the
drilling of additional wells on a uniform plan "in the pool or
ary zone thereocf."

The Board made its order approving the second well as
the production well for the unit and charging Bennion for his
proportionate share of the cost of drilling in reliance on
section 40-6-1, which is entitled "Declaration of Public
Interest:"

It is declared to be in the public
interest to foster, encourage, and promote
the development, production, and
utilization of natural resocurces of oil
and gas in the state of Utah in such a
manner as will prevent waste; to authorize
and to provide for the operation and
development of oil and gas properties in
such a manner that a greater ultimate
recovery of oil and gas may be obtained
and that the correlative rights of all
owners be fully protected; to encourage,
authorize, and provide for voluntary
agreements for cycling, recycling,
pressure maintenance, and secondary
recovery operations in order that the
greatest possible economic recovery of cil
and gas may be obtained within the state
to the end that the land owners, the
royalty owners, the producers, and the
general public may realize and enjoy the
greatest possible good from these vital
natural resources.

The Board further justified its action on its finding that the
first well at the time it was shut in was at the point.of.. .. ___.

- - ———-marginal-recovery_of_further oil or gas or both of themn. At

reports of the second well for the first three mont@s of its
operation which showed higher productiecn than the first well.
However, Gulf did not know 1f the second well would be a
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comnmercial well or even 3
that which would still he
expert witness testified:

L€ t excred

Frc. Gulf’s

we have no idea of wnha

reservolr 1is e can’

time. We re e that

is--apparent e rese

geolcg*cal structure cf

almost 1mpossible to de

gcing to hapren frcnm cn

as far as correlating .

40-6~1 to premcte the develcpment of our state’s oil and gas
resources. We do not belleve, however, that the brocad
declaration of puklic interest ccntained therein was meant to
override the specific statutory restrictions on the drilling cf
an additional well on any unic.l Moreover, we ncte that the
declaration cf publlic interest calls for "the greatest possible
economic recovery of oil and gas," which precvides the basis for
Bennion’s complaint that the evidence is lacking as to wnhether
the second well will ever pay out. We also note the legis-
lative intent expressed in secticn 40-6-6(a) that the drilling
of unnecessary wells be avoided. Thus, aside from the fact
that there does not appear to be any statutory autherity for
the action of the Board, the evidence was insufficient to
denmonstrate that it was more eguitable or reasonable to shut
the first well and redesignate the second well as the pro-~
duction well. More importantly, the evidence fails to justify
the trampling of a no“consentA“q wlne*al interest owner’s
correlative rights in charging hin with the added and
speculative expense of drilling the second well.

We ackncwledge the leglislative mandate in secticn

in

We have examined Gulf’s res judicata defense and find
it to be without merit.

The Board erred in 1ts recdesignaticn of the second
well as the producticn well f£or the unit, and the district
court erred in affiirming the Board’s order. We vacate the
Board‘s order in cause number 139-20(B) and remand the cause to
the Bocard with the ins<tructicn Lo enter an crder that the
second well is and has been producing in viclaticn of U.C.A.,
1953, § 40-6-6(e) and relieve Eennicn of all obligation to

share in the ccst of drilling.

I In Y9837 Two-years— a"e*ffhe hea*Lng beicre tne-Boardiini———
11
the instant case, extensiv ~rts were made to the Cil
we have nct ccnsidered

and Gas Conservaticn Act.
then in cur analysis an
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WE CONCUR:

Gordon R. Eall, Chief Justice

Christine M. Durham, Justice

Michael D. Zimmerman, Justice

Stewart, Justice, concurs in the result.
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